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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Supervisors
Village Center Community Development District
The Villages, Florida
We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the governmental activities, businesstype activities and each major fund of Village Center Community Development District (the District), as
of and for the year ended September 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents. These basic financial statements are the responsibility of the
District's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these basic financial statements
based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.
In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities and each major fund
of the District as of September 30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position, budgetary
comparison of the special revenue fund, and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 10,
2010, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests ofits
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in
considering the results of our audit.

Certified Public Accountants
P.O. Box 23999·222 N.E. 1st Street. Gainesville, Florida 32602. (352) 378·2461 • FAX (352) 378-2505
Laurel Ridge Professional Center. 2347 S.E. 17th Street. Ocala, Florida 34471 • (352) 732-3872 • FAX (352) 732-0542
443 East College Avenue. Tallahassee, Florida 32301 • (850) 224-7144 • FAX (850) 224-1762
2201 Cantu Court, Suite #100. Sarasota, Florida 34232. (941) 379-2800. FAX (941) 379-2899
MEMBERS OF AMERICAN AND FLORIDA INSTITUTES OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
MEMBER OF AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERT!FIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS PRIVATE COMPANIES AND S.E.c. PRACTlCE SECTIONS
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Board of Supervisors
Village Center Community Development District
The Villages, Florida

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
(Concluded)

The management's discussion and analysis, as listed in the accompanying table of contents is not a
required part of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

February 10,2010
Ocala, Florida
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VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Management's Discussion and Analysis
(UNAUDITED)
September 30, 2009

The Village Center Community Development District (the District) management's discussion and analysis is
designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the
District's financial activities and (c) identify changes in the District's financial position and its ability to address
the next and subsequent year challenges.
Financial Highlights
o

Net assets increased over the previous year by $6,795,005. The governmental activities recognized an
increase of $1,251,346, primarily in the Public Safety area. The business-type activities recognized a net
increase of $5,543,659, with all funds seeing increases. The Recreation Amenities Division (RAD) Fund saw
the largest increase of$4,041,392, with all proprietary funds recognizing increases in net assets.

o

A new proprietary fund, the Fitness Fund was established in the FY 2008-2009 budget and became
operational on October 1,2008. This new fund was established to provide for the separate financial operation
of the three fitness centers operated by the Sumter Landing and Village Center Districts. Initial resources
equal to the fitness deferred revenues in the RAD and Sumter Landing District Amenities Division (SLAD)
funds were used to provide working capital for the new fund.

o At the close of the fiscal year, the District's governmental funds reported a fund balance of $2,630,230, a net
increase of$761,500 compared to the prior year.
o

The District's proprietary funds realized an increase in net assets of $5,543,659. All funds saw increases to
net assets, with the RAD Fund increasing by $4,041,392. The Village Center Service Area and Little Sumter
Service Area water and sewer funds both had increases to net assets of $875,266 and $247,431, respectively.
The newly-created Fitness Fund had an increase of net assets of $379,570 during the year.

o

The $247,431 increase in net assets in the Little Sumter Service Area was a significant turnaround from the
net decrease in the prior year of$I,069,186. Adjustments to the rate schedule, due to a new conservation rate
structure effective June 1,2008 and a 3.94 percent Consumer Price Index (CPI) increase effective October I,
2008 (based on April 2007 to 2008 CPI change), contributed substantially to this turnaround. A further rate
review was completed in August 2009 to ensure debt service coverage requirements in the 2003 Utility
Bonds are met. The review provided for a zero percent rate adjustment effective October 1,2009, and annual
increases of2.5 percent effective October 1,2010 and each year thereafter.

o

The District's total long-term debt decreased by $8,004,599 during the current fiscal year. The decrease
relates to principal payments made on outstanding revenue bonds and loans during the year ended September
30,2009.

Overview of the Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District's basic financial statements.
The District's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: I) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to basic financial statements.
Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the District's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The
Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the District's assets and liabilities, with the difference
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VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Management's Discussion and Analysis
(UNAUDITED)
September 30, 2009
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases and decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the Village Center Community Development District is improving
or deteriorating.
The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government's net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g. uncollected assessments).
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the District that are principally
supported by assessments and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the District include general government, public safety, and
environmental services. The business-type activities of the District include the Recreation Amenities Division
which provides general governmental, debt service and culture and recreation services. The District also operates
two water and sewer utilities serving different geographical areas of The Villages. The District has no component
units, as all functions are performed by the primary government.
The government-wide financial statements are provided on pages 9-10 of this report.

The Fund Financial Statements, which report by individual fund, begin on page II. Traditional users of
governmental financial statements will find the fund financial statements presentation more familiar. Afund is a
grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The Village Center Community Development District, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. There are four Special Revenue Funds that cover public safety services provided by the
Department of Public Safety and environmental and property maintenance services for the Village of Spanish
Springs, Rolling Acres and Road Maintenance in commercial areas of the District. All four funds are funded at
least in part through special assessments paid by benefiting property owners. The Public Safety Special Revenue
Fund also receives revenue from a variety of other sources, with the bulk of its budget funded by transfers from
other units oflocal government. There are currently no other governmental funds.
The District operates four proprietary funds, the Recreation Amenities Division (RAD) Fund; two water and
sewer utility funds, the Village Center Service Area (VCSA) Fund and the Little Sumter Service Area (LSSA)
Fund; and the newly-established Fitness Fund which began operations on October I, 2008. The fund financial
statements present information in more detail than the government-wide fmancial statements. Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34 provides the authoritative guidance on the governmental
financial reporting model.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide fmancial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
4
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the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental fonds and governmental activities.
The District currently maintains four governmental funds. Information is presented in the governmental fund
balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance for
the totals of the four special revenue funds. The Public Safety Special Revenue Fund is a major fund and is
separately displayed. The Village of Spanish Springs, Rolling Acres and Road Maintenance Special Revenue
Funds are non-major funds and are included in a single column.
The District adopts an annual budget for the governmental funds. A budgetary comparison statement for the
Public Safety Special Revenue Fund can be found on page IS of this report.

Proprietary funds. The District maintains four proprietary funds. The Recreation Amenities Division (RAD)
Enterprise Fund provides for the operation, maintenance and debt service for bonds used to acquire recreational
facilities in the Districts. The District operates two separate water and sewer utility funds serving different
geographical areas of The Villages. The Village Center Service Area (VCSA) Fund serves the Village of Spanish
Springs commercial area and residential areas in Lake County, plus part of District No. I in Sumter County. The
Little Sumter Service Area Fund provides utility services to part of District No. I and all of District Nos. 2, 3,
and 4. The preceding funds all meet the GASB 34 criteria to be considered major funds. A new proprietary fund,
the Fituess Fund was established in this fiscal year to separately account for the operations of the Mulberry
Grove, Colony Cottage and Laurel Manor fitness centers. It is the only non-major proprietary fund of the District.
These enterprise funds, a category of proprietary funds, are included as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements.
Proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
using accrual accounting, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the four enterprise funds.
The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 16-18 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources
of those funds are not available to support the Village Center Community Development District's own programs.
The accounting for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The District established its first
fiduciary fund, the Beyond the Stars Fund, in July 2008. This fund is used to account for donations voluntarily
deducted from employees' paychecks and used for charitable purposes involving needy employees and their
family members. The statement can be found on page 19 of this report.
Notes to the financial statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found beginning on
page 20 of this report.
Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the
case of the District, assets exceeded liabilities by $50,897,281 as of September 30, 2009, representing an increase
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of $6,795,005 from the net assets of $44,102,276 (as restated) as of September 30, 2008. The increase in net
assets for September 30, 2009 is due mainly to increased charges for services revenues. At the same time there
were smaller increases in recreational, public safety, water and sewer expenses, and a reduction in interest
expenses.
The District's net assets are categorized as follows, as of September 30, 2009:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt This portion of the District's net assets reflects its investment in
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those assets
that are still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to its residents; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. Although the District's investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves will not be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Restrictedfor debt service. An additional portion of the District's net assets represents resources that are subject
to external restrictions on how they may be used. The District's restricted net assets are for purposes of meeting
its debt service obligations.

Unrestricted net assets. The remaining balance of the District's net assets may be used to meet the District's
ongoing obligations to residents and creditors.
Table I reflects the summary statement of net assets for the current and prior years.
VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Table 1

September 30,
2009
2008
(as restated)
34,052,852
43,417,557
18,897,262
748,767
8,478,364
9,785,184
11,813,159
11,194,611

Total
September 3D,
2009
2008
(as restated)
45,488,178
36,716,835
854,101
19,075,932
9,785,184
8,478,364
11,194,611
11,813,159

13,213,874

13,960,223

13,213,874

13,960,223

2.872.200

118,658,581

121,707,948

121,800,610

124,580,148

168,162,924

173,517,638

168,162,924

173,517,638

5,984.682

5,048,155

373,277,016

374,331,928

379,261,698

379,380,083

440,394
584,509
1,024,903

595,850
743,872
1,339,722

11,984,362
315,355,152
327,339,514

18,431,977
315,506,108
333,938,085

12,424,756
315,939,661
328,364,417

19,027,827
316,249,980
335,277,807

2,381,004
2,578,775

1,880,959
1,827,474

4,959,779

3,708,433

(13,484,975)
13,014,412
46,408,065
45,937,502

(20,459,175)
15,115,993
45,737,025
40,393,843

(11,103,971)
15,593,187
46,408,065
50,897,281

(18,578,216)
16,943,467
45,737,025
44,102,276

Business-type Activities

Governmental Activities

Septem ber 30,
2009
2008

Assets:
Current assets
Restricted assets
Amenity settlement assets
Investment in annuity
Bond issuance costs (net of
accumulated amortization)

$

Capital assets, (net of
accumulated depreciation)
Intangible assets, (net of
accumulated amortization)

2.663.983
178.670

3,142,029

Total Assets
Liabilities:
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Total Liabilities

2.070.621
105.334

Net assets (deficit):
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net assets

$
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Governmental Activities
Governmental activities increased the District's net assets by $1,251,346 during the year ended September 30,
2009, Most of this increase occurred in the Public Safety Department. Commercial area maintenance activities
contributed the remaining balance.
Business-type Activities
Business-type activities increased the District's net assets by approximately $5,543,659 during the year ended
September 30,2009. All four proprietary funds contributed to this increase in net assets.
Table 2 reflects the summary statement of activities for the current and prior years:
VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNrry DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Table 2
Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities
September 30,
2009
2008
(As restated)

September 30,

2009
Program revenues:
Charges for services
$
Donated capital
Operating contributions
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Investment earnings
Extraordinary earnings
Total revenues
Expenses:
Recreational amenity
Fire safety
Commercial area maintenance
Water & sewer utilities
Depreciation and amortization
Interest on long-tenn debt
Tota! expenses
Changes in net assets
Total net assets (deficit), beginning

Total net assets (deficit), ending

$

2008

66,856,765
25
71,143
15,137

56,856,792

1,705,565
68,648,635

705,108
32,633,111
90,332,298

4,666,763
10,538,472
16,994,939
49,882,548

23,297,802
5,248,919
759,384
5,271,656
10,932,314
16,343,555
61,853,630

17,682,374
4,551,621
667,813
4,666,763
10,801,173
17,045,933
55,415,677

5,543,659

33,232,143

6,795,005

34,916,621

2,023,955

40,393,843

7,161,700

44,102,276

9,185,655

3,708,433

45,937,502

40,393,843

50,897,281

44,102,276

59,399,156
25

49,803,728

Total
September 30,
2009
2008
(As restated)

7,457,609

7,053,064

71,143
15,137

83,579
32,385

27,087

48,579

1,678,478

7,570,976

7,217,607

61,077,659

656,529
32,633,111
83,114,691

23,297,802

17,682,374

5,248,919
759,384

4,551,621
667,813

270,136
41,191
6,319,630

262,701
50,994
5,533,129

5,271,656
10,662,178
16,302,364
55,534,000

1,251,346

1,684,478

3,708,433
4,959,779

21,323

83,579
53,708

Capital Assets

The District's capital assets as of September 30,2009 and 2008 amounted to $121,800,610 and $124,580,148, as
restated, respectively. This is net of accumulated depreciation and includes buildings and structures,
improvements other than buildings, and machinery and equipment. A comprehensive review of the District's
capital assets was completed during the year, resulting in the restatement of the beginning balance of capital
assets as of October 1,2008. The review resulted primarily in the upward adjustment of capital assets for land
and land improvements donated to the District in previous years and not recorded. Additional information
regarding the District's capital assets can be found in Note 4 to the financial statements.
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Long-term Debt

As of September 30, 2009 and 2008, the District had long-term debt outstanding of $316,116,178 and
$324,120,777, respectively. Additional information regarding the District's long-term debt can be found in Note
7 of the financial statements.
Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

•

The unemployment rate in Lake, Sumter and Marion Counties, where the District is located, was 9.1
percent in September 2009, which is an increase from a rate of 4.5 percent a year ago. This compares
favorably with the State's average unemployment rate of 11.3 percent and the national average rate of
9.8 percent.

•

Inflationary trends in the area compare favorably to national indices. The national Consumer Price
Increase (CPI) annual increase for all urban consumers changed favorably from 4.94 percent in
September 2008 to a negative 1.29 percent in September 2009.

These factors were considered in preparing the District's budget for the 2010 fiscal year. Total annual projected
revenues for all funds increased in the FY 2010 budget to $72.855 million compared to $68.724 million in the
FY 2009 final amended budget. On the expenditure side, the budget is anticipated to grow from $64.563 million
to $72.574 million for all funds, a growth of $8.012 million. Significant changes in the upcoming FY 2010
budget include the establishment of two new funds, the General Fund and the Community Standards Fund. The
General Fund was established to allow the equitable management of all overhead resources used to serve the
twelve Community Development Districts that comprise The Villages local govemment. The new Community
Standards Fund will account for the resources received and the expenditures related to deed compliance duties in
The Villages. In addition, the Fitness Proprietary Fund is reduced in scope, as a new Sumter Landing District
Fitness Fund was established to manage the resources for the Laurel Manor and Colony Cottage fitness centers.
The Mulberry Grove fitness center is the only fitness center remaining in the existing Village Center District
Fitness Fund.
Request for Information

The District's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and
creditors) with a general overview of the District's fmances and to demonstrate the District's accountability. If
you have any questions about the report or need additional financial information, contact the Village Community
Development Districts, Finance Department at 3201 Wedgewood Lane, The Villages, FL 32162; Telephone
(352) 753-0421.
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Governmental
Activities

Assets

$

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Note receivable amenity settlement
Note receivable woodshop
Investments
Investment in annuity
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Internal balances
Inventory
Prepaids
Capital assets:
Land
Building and structures
Infrastructure
Furniture & fixtures
Leasehold improvements
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation
Bond issuance costs (net of accumulated amortization)
Intangible assets (net of accumulated amortization)

2,163,161
387

38,867
9,894
397,038
9,703,741
59,053,054
83,988,909
3,944,657
9,815
1,099,619
(39,141,214)
13,213,874
168,162,924

9,703,741
59,053,054
83,988,909
7,971,496
393,767
1,099,619
(40,409,976)
13,213,874
168, I 62,924

5,984,682

373,277,016

379,261,698

42,331
204,782

4,042,568
562,355
4,318,134
1,117,004

263,877

345,535
1,598,766
11,984,362

4,084,899
767,137
4,318,134
1,117,004
16,764
345,535
1,598,766
12,248,239

176,517
584,509
761,026

1,381,984
8,213,168
305,760,000
315,355,152

1,381,984
8,389,685
306,344,509
316,116,178

1,024,903

327,339,514

328,364,417

2,381,004

(13,484,975)

(11,103,971)

6,939,412
6,075,000

46,408,065

6,939,412
6,075,000
1,968,145
303,455
7,965
299,210
46,408,065

45,937,502

50,897,281

67,626
69,739
41,305

4,026,839
383,952
(1,268,762)

29,831,290
4,221,562
8,478,364
33,572
18,413,112
11,813,159
4,779

Total

31,994,451
4,221,949
8,478,364
33,572
18,913,547
11,813,159
72,405
69,739
38,867
9,894
438,343

500,435

Total assets

Business-type
Activities

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued interest payable
Due to developer
Due to other governments
Unearned revenue
Deferred Revenue
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt:
Due to developer
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total long-term debt

16,764

Total liabilities
Net Assets

Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt Service
Renew & Replacement
Department of Pub lie Safety
Village of Spanish Springs
Rolling Acres
Commercial Road Maintenance
Unrestricted
Total net assets (deficit)

1,968,145
303,455
7,965
299,210

$

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Statement of Activities
Year Ended September 30, 2009

Net (expense) revenue and

FUDctions/Programs

Expenses

Charges
for services

Program revenues
Operating

contributions

Capital grants
and contributions

Governmental
activities

chao_ges in net assets
Business-type
activities

Total

Governmental activities:

$

Fire safety

Commercial area maintenance
Interest on long~term debt
Total governmental activities
Business~type

5,519,055
759,384
41,191

6,591,295
866,314

70,998
145

15,137

1,158,375
107,075
(41,191)

1,158,375
107,075
(41,191)

6,319,630

7,457,609

71,143

15,137

1,224,259

1,224,259

41,095,714
5,107,073
9,015,238
315,975

43,524,692
5,932,354
9,248,315
693,820

55,534,000

59,399,181

61,853,630

66,856,790

activities:

Recreational Amenities
VeSA Water and sewer
LSSA Water and sewer
Fitness
Total business-type activities

Total primary government

$

2,428,978
825,281
233,077
377,845
71,143

General revenues:
Investment earnings
Total general revenues
Change in net assets
Net assets (deficit) - beginning

$

Net assets (deficit) - ending

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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3,865,181

3,865,181

3,865,181

5,089,440

27,087

1,678,478

1,705,565

27,087

1,678,478

1,705,565

1,251,346

5,543,659

6,795,005

3,708,433

40,393,843

44,102,276

4,959,779

45,937,502

50,897,281

1,224,259

15,137

2,428,978
825,281
233,077
377,845

VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

September 30, 2009

Department of

Public Safety

Assets
Cash
Cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Investments
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Prepaid items
Total assets

$

$

Non-Major
Funds Total

596,997
946,257
387
500,435
67,626
69,739
41,305
2,222,746

241,000
244,923

186,382
16,764
203,146

9,277

133,984

619,907

Total

837,997
1,325,164
387
500,435
67,626
69,739
41,305
2,842,653

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Accounts payable and accrued expense

$

Due to other governments
Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Prepaids
Department of Public Safety
Village of Spanish Springs Common Area Maintenance
Rolling Acres Common Area Maintenance
Commercial Road Maintenance
Total fund balance
Total liabilities and fund balance

9,277

195,659
16,764
212,423

303,455
7,965
299,210
610,630
619,907

41,305
1,978,295
303,455
7,965
299,210
2,630,230
2,842,653

41,305
1,978,295

$

See accompanying notes to basic fmandal statements.
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2,019,600
2,222,746

VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2009

Fund balance - governmental funds
Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets is different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the general fund:
Capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation

$

$

2,630,230

4,410,791
(1,268,762)
3,142,029

Long-tenn liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the general fund:
Leases payable
Loans payable
Compensated absences

(276,422)
(484,605)
(51,453)

(812,480)

$

Net assets (deficit) of governmental activities
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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4,959,779

VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds
Year Ended September 30, 2009

Department of
Public Safety

Revenues:
Fire assessments - Dept. of Public Safety
Amenities revenue - Dept. of Public Safety
Sumter County General Fund Transfer - Dept. of Public Safety
bnpact Fees - Dept. of Public Safety
Grants and contributions - Dept. of Public Safety
Assessments - Village of Spanish Springs
Assessments - Rolling Acres
Assessments - Conunercial Road Maintenance
Other fees
Other revenues
Interest
Total revenues

$

2,838,952
1,850,394
1,281,316
620,488
15,137

12,180
878,784

667,050
89,203
3,131

5,238,720
667,050
89,203
3,131

41,191
230,214
539,966
6,050,091
642,100

759,384
119,400

41,191
230,214
539,966
6,809,475
761,500

642,100
1,377,500
2,019,600

119,400
491,230
610,630

761,500
1,868,730
2,630,230

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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748,565
92,660
25,234
145

5,238,720

$

Total

2,838,952
1,850,394
1,281,316
620,488
15,137
748,565
92,660
25,234
29,728
41,415
27,086
7,570,975

29,583
41,415
14,906
6,692,191

Expenditures:
Current:
Fire safety operations
Maintenance & administration - Village of Spanish Springs
Maintenance & administration - Rolling Acres
Maintenance & administration - Conunercial Road Maintenance
Debt service:
Interest - Dept. of Public Safety
Principal payments - Dept. of Public Safety
Capital outlay - Dept. of Public Safety
Total expenditures
Excess of revenues over expenditures
Transfers in/out
Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning of year (as restated)
Fund balance, end of year

Non-Major
Funds

VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund BaIance~
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended September 30, 2009

Net change in fund balance - governmental funds

$

761,500

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
3re different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives
and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay

exceeded depreciation in the current period.

269,831

Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in governmental funds, but the

repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

230,214

Decrease (increase) in compensated absenses.

(10,199)

Change in net assets of governmental activities
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
Public Safety Special Revenue Fund
Year ended September 30, 2009

Revenues:
Fire assessments
Amenities revenue
Sumter County General Fund transfer
Impact fees
Grants and contributions

Budgeted Amounts
Original

Budgeted Amounts

2,393,391
1,871,545
1,740,418
520,000

2,838,952
1,850,394
1,281,316
620,488
15,137
41,415
29,583
14,906

11,966
(17,830)

Final

Actual
Amounts

Variance with
Final Budget

Other fees

13,859

Other revenue
Interest

37,848

2,838,951
1,850,394
1,281,316
620,488
13,300
41,415
17,617
32,736

6,577,061

6,696,217

6,692,191

(4,026)

5,473,788

5,558,699

5,217,575

(341,124)

40,747
232,107
520,000

41,191
230,215
561,300

41,191
230,214
561,111

(189)

$

Total revenues

1,837

Expenditures:

Current
Fire safety operations
Debt service:
Interest
Principal payments
Capital outlay
Tota! expenditures

(I)

6,266,642

6,391,405

6,050,091

(341,314)

Deficiency of revenues
ovec expenditures

310,419

304,812

642,100

337,288

Net change in fund balance

310,419

304,812

642,100

337,288

1,377,500

1,377,500

1,377,500

1,687,919

1,682,312

2,019,600

Fund balance (deficit), beginning afyear
Fund balance (deficit), end of year

$

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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337,288

VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2009

Assets

Fitness

RAD

VCSA Water
sndSewer

LSSA Water

3,139,873
1,651,201
655,290

2,066,201

and Sewer

Total

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Note receivable amenity settlement (current portion)

$

9,992

2,404,705
2,400,400
33,572

Note receivable woodshop
lnveslmen~

485,918

5,046,954
10,524,407

(FMIvT)

4,221,562
33,572

24,827

2,249,233
14,040

523,441

5,899

3,995
41696

397,038

71715,536

8!831:846

53,515,716

309,580

142,718

1,834,798
6,077,964
11,813,159

129,613
1,548,823
30,944,358

125,612
5,125,564
35,018,930

1,151,006

275,397
348,874
(7,392,224)
2,499,658
36,841!315

9,703,741
59,053,054
83,988,909
9,815
3,944,657
1,099,619
(39,141,214)
13,213,874
168,162,924

4,779

InventolY
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets
Nofi-cU'rrent assets:
Restricted cash and' cash equivalents
-Note receivable amenity settlement (non-current portion)
It)vestment in annuity
Capital assets:
Lond
Buildings and structures
Infrastructure
Leasehold improvements
Furniture & fixtures
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation
Bond issuance costs (net of accumulated amortization)
Intangible assets (net of accumulated amortization)
Total non-current assets
Total assets

10,738,946
17,257,546
2,400,400

15,640,438

Due from other funds
Due from other govenunents

5,081,938
1,151,575

.39:2:342
361472,424

495,910

1,382,500
6,077,964
11,813,159
9,448,516
52,378,667
18,025,621
9,815
2,518,254
750,745

(82)

(19,608,844)
9,039,081
131,321,609

(12,140,064)
1,675,135

18,413,112
38,867

4,779
9,894

223,147,272

9 1733

23,618,451

72,985,844

3191761 1300

259!6191696

505,643

31.333,987

81 1817,690

373,277,016

727,619
560,735
4,318,134
320,656
41,425
1,491,518
5,145,906

7,986

760,677

2,546,286
1,620

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued interest payable
Due to other funds
Due to developer
Deferred revenue
Current installments of revenue bonds payable
Total current liabilities
Non.current liabilities:
Revenue bo'nds payable, net
Due to developer
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Renewal and replacement
Unrestricted
Total net assets (deficit)

2,022,262

118051677

5,6591787

20,197,530

21,785,000

79,985,000

305,760,000
1,381,984

14,040
1,075,579

10,839
107,248
126,073

121605!993
203,990,000
1,381,984

21 1785,000

79,9851000

307,141,984

217,977,977

126,073

23!590,677

85,644,787

327,339,514

12,629,382

9,733

788,451

(9,021,418)

4,406,148

1,206,273
5,000,000
22,806,064

75,000
2941837

41,641,719

379,570

851,201
800,000
5,303,658
7,743,310

4,881,938
200,000
112,383
(3,827,097)

6,939,412
6,075,000
28!5161942
45,937,502

205,371!984

$

1,045,000

4,042,568
562,355
4,318,134
345,535
1,1l7,004
1,598,766
8,213,168

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
Year ended September 30, 2009

Operating revenues:
Charges for services:
Water revenue
Sewer revenue
Recreational amenity fees
Fitness recreational
Donated capital
Other income

veSA Water
and Sewer

Fitness

RAD

$

LSSA Water
and Sewer

2,772,757
3,120,787

4,785,255
4,379,039

38,810

84,021

7,558,012
7,499,826
32,965,932
693,820
25
10,681,566

5,932,354

9,248,315

59,399,181

2,719,555

2,552,101

5,271,656
12,938,929
10,358,873
4,561,115
6,101,064

32,965,932
693,820
25
10,558,735

Total

43,524,692

693,820

12,623,036
10,358,873
2,165,693
4,793,599

315,893
82

1,093,159
131,434

1,302,181
1,176,031

Total operating expenses

29,941,201

315,975

3,944,148

5,030,313

39,231,637

Operating income

13,583,491

377,845

1,988,206

4,218,002

20,167,544

1,612,415
(11,154,514)
(9,542,099)

1,725

49,985
(1,162,925)
(1,112,940)

14,354
(3,984,925)
(3,970,570

1,678,479
(16,302,364)
(14,623,885)

Change in net assets

4,041,392

379,570

Total net assets (deficit), beginning (As restated)

37,600,327

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Water and sewer

Recreational expenses
General and administrative
Depreciation
Amortization

Non-operating revenue (expenses):
Interest income
Interest expense
Total non-operating revenue (expenses)

Total net assets (deficit), ending

$

1,725

41,641,719

379,570

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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875,266

247,431

5,543,659

6,868,044

(4,074,528)

40,393,843

7,743,310

(3,827,097)

45,937,502

VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year ended September 30, 2009

RAD

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Receipts from other funds
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

$

Net cash provided by operating
activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing
activities:
Principal payments on bonds
Capital lease
Litigation settlement
Due to developer
Interest paid
Net cash (used in) provided by capital
and related financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for capital assets
Purchase of investments
Sale of assets
Disposition of investments
Interest received
Net cash provided (used) by investing
activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$

LSSA Water
and Sewer

Total

693,820
116,081
(165,622)
(150,271)

5,830,539
(13,445)
(2,030,272)

8,991,221
(595)
(3,114,331)

51,151,249
8,285,247
(17,724,043)
(10,100,172)

21,455,156

494,008

3,786,822

5,876,295

31,612,281

(5,190,000)
(3,430)
1,748,700

(990,000)

(1,440,000)

01,231,841)

0,770,375)

1,075,579
(4,036,646)

(7,620,000)
(3,430)
1,748,700
1,075,579
07,038,862)

(14,676,571)

(2,760,375)

(4,401,067)

(21,838.0 13)

(114,013)
(2,000,000)

(68,930)
(500,000)

(1,318,992)
(8,000,000)
(20,035)
1,910,536
94,738

(9,815)

1,725

221,154
34,012

274,722
12,595

(1,511,750)
(10,500,000)
(20,035)
2,406,412
143,070

(7,333,753)

(8.0 90)

(1,858,847)

(281,613)

(9,482,303)

(555,168)

485,918

(832,400)

1,193,615

291,965

5,933,055

6,097,242

29,539,326

16,953,861

485,918

5,100,655

7,290,857

29,831,291

5,046,954
10,524,407

485,918

3,139,874
1,651,201

2,066,201
5,081,938

10,738,947
17,257,546

309,580

142,718

1,834,798

16,953,861

485,918

5,100,655

7,290,857

29,831,291

13,583,491

377,845

1,988,206

4,218,002

20,167,544

2,165,693
4,793,599

82

1,093,159
131,433

1,302,181
1,176,032

4,561,115
6,101,064

100,362
(72,500)

(9,992)

(54,221)

(242,231)

10,839

(13,445)
(6,478)
(1,826)

(595)
15,209

649,994

(592,303)

(206,082)
(72,500)
(3,201)
342,706
13,383
(91,123)
688,757
110,618
31,612,281

1,382,500

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income
$
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Cash provided by (used in) changes in:
Accounts receivable
Due from/to developer (net)
Interfund balances (net)
Intergovernmental balances (due from/to, net)
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Net cash provided by operating activities $

(91,123)
623,080
3,370
21,455,156

Non-cash capital activities:
Conveyance of capital assets by developer
Note receivable (litigation settlement)
Investment in annuity (litigation settlement)

1,491,518
8,130,312
11,813,159

$

VeSA Water
and Sewer

35,635,669
8,183,206
(12,413,818)
(9,949,901)

17,509,029

$

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents per
statement of cash flows to the statement of
net assets:
Cash per statement of net assets:
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
$
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - current
Restricted cash and cash equivalentsnon-current
Cash and cash equivalents

Fitness

349,184

7,986
107,248
494,008

3,786,822

5,876,295

1,491,518
8,130,312
11,813,159

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Statement of Fidnciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Fund
September 30, 2009

Beyond the Stars
Agency Fund
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other funds
Investments
Total assets

$

1,522
533
38,945
41,000

$
$

41,000
41,000

$

Liabilities:
Due to Beyond the Stars Beneficiaries
Total liabilities

19

VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2009
(1)

Summary of Significant Accouuting Policies

(a)

Reporting Entity
The Village Center Community Development District (the District) was established in 1992 to
manage and finance basic services for a community development district located in The
Villages, Florida. The District is governed by a five-member Board of Supervisors who are
elected on a rotating basis by the landowners within the District for terms from two to four
years. The District was created by the Town of Lady Lake, Florida, in Ordinance No. 92-06,
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 190.005 of the Florida Statutes, and operates within the
criteria established by Chapter 190.
The District provides water and sewer utility services, recreation, security services, fire
protection and paramedic services to residents of a retirement community known as The
Villages, located in The Villages, Florida. The Villages consists of approximately 23,000 acres
sparming the borders of Lake, Sumter and Marion Counties, the City of Wildwood and the
Town of Lady Lake, Florida, and when fully developed, is expected to include 55,000
residences and approximately 105,000 residents. The District also provides for the
maintenance of common areas and roadways for the commercial areas within the District's
boundaries. The Villages of Lake-Sumter, Inc. (Developer) developed The Villages. As of
September 30, 2009, the members of the Board of Supervisors are employees of or affiliated
with the Developer.
There are no component units that are legally separate from the District. There are twelve
Community Development Districts (COD's) in the total structure of The Villages, each being a
separate govemment entity, established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes.
The Developer has formed the following community development districts:
•

Village Center COD (Lake, Marion and Sumter Counties) - This COD provides water
and sewer utility services, recreation, security services, fire protection and paramedic
services to the residents. The cost of operations is funded by amenity and utility fees
that residents pay monthly. This COD also provides for the maintenance of common
areas and roadways for the commercial areas within the COD boundaries. The cost of
maintenance in the commercial areas is funded through commercial maintenance
assessments.

•

Sumter Landing COD (Sumter County) - This COD provides recreation and security
services to the residents. The cost of operations is funded by amenity fees that
residents pay monthly. This CDD also provides for the maintenance of common areas
and roadways for the commercial areas within the COD boundaries. The cost of
maintenance in the commercial areas is funded through commercial maintenance
assessments.

•

Village COD No. 1 (Sumter County) - This COD's boundary consists of
approximately 998 acres in the northeast comer of the county. The development
includes construction of 3,420 residential units.

•

Village COD No. 2 (Sumter County) - This COD's boundary consists of
approximately 990 acres in the northeast comer of the county. The development
includes construction of 3,668 residential units.
20
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VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2009
(1)

Snmmary of Significant Acconnting Policies (continned)

(a)

Reporting Entity (continued)
•

Village CDD No. 3 (Sumter County) - This CDD's boundary consists of
approximately 894 acres in the northeast corner of the county. The development
includes constrnction of 3,762 residential units.

•

Village CDD No. 4 (Marion County) - This CDD's boundary consists of
approximately 1,187 acres in the southern portion of the county. The development
includes construction of 5,132 residential units.

•

Village CDD No. 5 (Sumter County) - This CDD's boundary consists of
approximately 1,408 acres in the nortbeast corner of the county. The development
includes construction of 6,399 residential units.

•

Village CDD No. 6 (Sumter County) - This CDD's boundary consists of
approximately 1,497 acres in the northeast corner of the county. Planned development
includes construction of 6,677 residential units.

•

Village CDD No. 7 (Sumter County) - This CDD's boundary consists of
approximately 976 acres in the northeast corner of the county. Planned development
includes constrnction of 4,765 residential units.

•

Village CDD No. 8 (Sumter County) - This CDD's boundary consists of
approximately 1,070 acres in the northeast corner of the county. Planned development
includes constrnction of 5,140 residential units.

•

Village CDD No. 9 (Sumter County) - This CDD's boundary consists of
approximately 946 acres in the northeast corner of the county. This CDD has been
formed, but is not yet being developed as of September 30,2009.

•

Village CDD No. 10 (Sumter County) - This CDD's boundary consists of
approximately 999 acres in the northeast corner of the county. This CDD has been
formed, but is not yet being developed as of September 30,2009.

Certain of these community development districts have issued special assessment revenue
bonds to finance various infrastrncture improvements in their respective boundaries that are
secured by special assessments levied on benefited lands in each district. It is anticipated that
additional infrastructure improvements within The Villages will be undertaken by these
community development districts and/or community development districts that will be created
in the future, for which special assessments may be imposed on residences in The Villages and
lands owned by the Developer.
The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with U.S. Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and fmancial reporting principles. Pronouncements of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued after November 30, 1989 are not applied in the
preparation of the financial statements of the proprietary funds in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 20. The District's more significant accounting policies are described below.
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VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2009

(1)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

Basic Financial Statements
Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements
The basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the District as a
whole) and fund financial statements. The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the
statement of net assets and statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the District. For the most part, the effect of internal activity has been
removed from these statements.
The financial reporting model focus is on either the District as a whole, or major individual
funds. The government-wide statement of net assets reports the governmental activities of the
District (a) on a government-wide basis and (b) on a full accrual basis, using the economic
resources measurement focus, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as
long-term debt and obligations. The statement of activities reflects the expenses of the District,
which are offset by revenues. Program revenues are defined as charges for services, operating
grants and contributions, and capital grants and contributions directly associated with a given
function.
The District's major funds are presented in separate columns on the fund financial statements.
The definition of a major fund is one that meets criteria set forth in GASB Statement 34.
Program revenues in the Statement of Activities consist primarily of special assessments for
the government activity and charges for utility and recreational amenities in proprietary funds.
Net assets are categorized as invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and
unrestricted.

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt is intended to reflect the portion of net assets
which are associated with capital assets net of accumulated depreciation less outstanding
capital asset related debt. Related debt is the debt less any associated unamortized issuance
costs.
Restricted net assets are assets that have third party (statutory, bond covenant or granting
agency) or enabling legislation limits on their use. The District would typically use restricted
assets first, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively defer the use
thereof to a future project or replacement equipment acquisition.
Unrestricted net assets represent net assets not included in Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt or Restricted net assets.
(c)

Measurement Focus, Basis ofAccounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues, including recreational amenities fees and utilities charges, are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
22

VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2009
(1)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(c)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
(continued)
related cash flows. Assessments are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied.
Govermnental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures are recorded only when payment is due and compensated absences are recognized
to the extent they have matured.
The following is the District's major governmental fund:
Pnblic Safety Special Revenue Fund
The District's major governmental fund is the Public Safety Special Revenue Fund, which is
used to account for all financial resources of the Public Safety Department.
The following are the District's three non-major governmental funds:
Village of Spanish Springs (VOSS) Special Revenne Fnnd
This fund is used to account for all financial resources, including special assessments, related
to the maintenance of facilities in the commercial areas that comprise a major retail,
entertainment and downtown area of The Villages.
Rolling Acres Special Revenue Fnnd
This fund is used to account for all financial resources, including special assessments, related
to the maintenance of facilities in the Rolling Acres Plaza commercial area, a major retail
center in The Villages.
Road Maintenance Special Revenue Fund
This fund is used to account for all financial resources, including special assessments, related
to the maintenance of roads and rights-of-way facilities in the commercial areas of The
Villages.
The following are the District's three major enterprise funds, a type of proprietary fund:
Recreation Amenities Division (RAD) Fund
The principal operating revenues of the District's RAD fund are charges to customers for
amenity fee based services, including recreation and security. RAD's operating fund is used to
account for all costs of providing services on a continuing basis.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (coutiuued)

(c)

Measurement Focus, Basis ofAccounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
(continued)
Village Center Service Area (VCSA) Utility Fund
The principal operating revenues of the District's VCSA Utility fund are charges to customers
for water and waste water services. VCSA Utility's operating fund is used to account for all
costs of providing services on a continuiug basis to customers located in the Lake County
portion of The Villages, and a portion of District No. I residential areas iu Sumter County.
Little Sumter Service Area (LSSA) Utility Fund
The priucipal operating revenues of the District's LSSA Utility fund are charges to customers
for water and waste water services. LSSA Utility's operating fund is used to account for all
costs of providing services on a continuing basis in the residential areas located in District Nos.
I (portion), 2, 3, and 4, along with associated commercial areas.
The following fund newly-established in fiscal year 2009, is the only non-major enterprise
fund within the District:
Fituess Euterprise Fuud
This fund provides for the accounting of all resources for the operation of three fitness centers
for The Villages residents. The fitness centers are located at the Mulberry Grove, Laurel
Manor and Colony Cottage recreation centers.
Proprietary fuuds report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The District uses enterprise funds,
a type of proprietary funds, to account for the operations and maintenance of the water and
sewer utility systems, the fitness centers, and the Recreation Amenities Division (RAD) that
are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the costs
of providing services on a continuing basis are financed through user charges.
The District reports the following major enterprise funds: the RAD Fund, the VCSA Water and
Sewer Utility Fund and the LSSA Water and Sewer Utility Fund. The Fitness Enterprise fund
is a non-major fund. Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with an enterprise fund's principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the District enterprise funds are charges to
customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of services,
administrative expenses, depreciation on capital assets, and amortization of debt service
issuance costs and intangible assets. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
Additionally, the District reports on the following fund type:
Fiduciary fund - The Beyond the Stars Agency Fund accounts for the voluntary donations
made by District employees for the benefit of needy employees and their families. This fund is

24

VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
September 30, 2009

(1)

Summary of Siguificant Accounting Policies (contiuued)

(c) Measurement Focus, Basis ofAccounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (continued)
not reflected in the government-wide fmancial statements because the resources of the fund are
not available to support the District's own programs. The accounting used for this fund is
much like that used for proprietary funds.

(d)

Budgetary Data
Legal authority and control are established in accordance with Section 190.008 of Florida
Statutes. Annual budgets are adopted and approved by the Board of Supervisors. Annual
budgets, as well as subsequent amendments, are adopted for all funds on a basis consistent
with GAAP.
All budget amounts presented in the statements reflect the original budget and the amended
budget if so amended.

(e)

Deposits and Investments
The District's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.
•

Money Market Mutual Funds

•

Demand Deposits

•

Florida State Board of Administration's Local Government Investment Pool (SBA
LGIP)

The money market mutual funds are stated at cost which approximates fair value.
In May 2008, the District transferred amounts approximately equal to its long-term reserved
fund balances (less debt service reserves maintained with the bond trustee) into the Florida
Municipal Investment Trust (FMIvT) operated by the Florida League of Cities. The investment
was placed into the FMIvT's 1-3 Year High Quality Bond Fund. In September 2009, the
District also opened accounts for some funds in the FMIvT's 0-2 Year High Quality Bond
Fund. The investment in this pool is evidenced by shares which are marked to market monthly.
As part of the settlement agreement between the District, The Villages of Lake Sumter, and
Villages residents, an initial payment of $11,886,151 in cash was received in April 2008. In
addition, a total of $28,021 ,000 in further payments is due each December for the next thirteen
years. The first of these payments in the amount of $1,748,700 was received in December
2008. The Villages of Lake Sumter provided the District an annuity contract which is held as
an investment valued at $11,813,159 to cover the last eight years of this settlement
requirement. The second through fifth annual payments are shown as a receivable with a net
present value of $8,478,364 as of September 30, 2009.

(f)

Capital Assets
Capital assets are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns
in the government-wide fmancial statements and the proprietary fund financial statements. As
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Snmmary of Significant Acconnting Policies (continned)
(f) Capital Assets (continued)
defined by the District, capital assets are assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Depreciation of capital assets is computed
using the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:
Buildings and structures
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

(g)

15-40 years
10-40 years
5-10 years

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets represent the discounted value of future amenity fees or utilities service fees
acquired from the Developer, and are capitalized at cost at the date of acquisition. Intangible
assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over an estimated useful life of 40 years.

(h)

Compensated Absences
It is the District's policy to accumulate earned but unused vacation benefits. All vacation pay is

accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary financial statements.
(i)

Bond Discounts, Bond Premiums and Issuance Costs
In the government-wide .and proprietary fund financial statements, bond discounts, bond
premiums and issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the term of the bonds using the
straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method. Bond discounts and
premiums are presented as a reduction and increase, respectively, of the face amount of the
revenue bonds payable, whereas issuance costs are recorded as assets, and amortized over the
life of the bond issue.

OJ

Use ofEstimates
The preparation of financial statements requires management of the District to make a number
of estimates and assumptions relating to the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

(k)

Restricted Assets - Proprietary Funds
Certain proceeds of revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment,
are classified as restricted assets on the statement of net assets because their use is limited by
applicable bond covenants. Restricted assets in the form of cash and cash equivalents that will
be used to pay current liabilities are classified as current assets in the accompanying statement
of net assets.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(k)

Restricted Assets - Proprietary Funds (continued)
The resolutions authorizing both the utility and recreational revenue bonds require that the
District establish sinking fund and reserve accounts in amounts that equal the Reserve Account
Requirements, which are defined in the Bond Trust Indentures.
In addition, the bond resolutions require that a renewal and replacement reserve be established.
The renewal and replacement reserve deposits are maintained as restricted assets until such
time as needed to fund those necessaty water and sewer system renewals and replacements.
The utility bond resolutions further require that the District deposit all system development
charges promptly, upon receipt thereof, in the System Development Charges account. These
funds shall be accumulated and applied by the District in accordance with the provisions of
Bond Trust Indenture. Certain of these assets are reimbursed to the Developer by the Little
Sumter Service Area utility fund.

(I)

Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable in the proprietaty funds consists of amounts due on amenity contracts,
charges for water and sewer, and amounts owed by the developer as a portion of the settlement
agreement. For uncollectible accounts receivable, the allowance method is used.

(m) Other Pay and Employee Benefits (OPEB)
In fiscal year 2009, the Village Center Community Development District (VCCDD) is the only
District of the twelve that comprise the local govermnent for The Villages that has employees
assigned to two payrolls. One payroll is for Public Safety Department employees and the other
covers the general employees of the Districts, to include elected officials. GASB 45, which
must be implemented in fiscal year 2009, requires the unrecorded costs of future pay and
benefits of current and retired employees be recognized as a liability to the District.
The benefits provided by the District to current employees consist of accrued vacation leave,
which is calculated and recorded as a compensated absence liability, group health and life
insurance policies, and participation in an IRS Section 401(a) defined contribution retirement
plan. Contributions to the group health and life insurance plans and the Section 401(a) plan
cease upon separation of an employee from the District, including retirement. No benefits are
provided to retired employees of the District. The VCCDD Section 401(a) retirement plan
provides for a normal retirement age of 65. No early retirement option is provided by the
District's plan. Although an employee separating at an earlier age, with vested balances in the
plan may withdraw those balances at or subsequent to separation, the employee is not
considered a retiree of the District unless the person has reached the normal retirement age of
the District (age 65) and has a vested balance in the 401(a) retirement plan.
Chapter 112.0801(1), Florida Statutes requires any local govermnent, including special
districts, which provides life, health, accident, hospitalization, 0r annuity insurance of any kind
through group insurance plans, to make available to its officers and employees and their
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Summary of Siguificaut Accouutiug Policies (continued)

(m)

Other Pay and Employee Benefits (OPEB)(continued)
eligible dependents, the option of continuing to participate in such group insurance plan
following retirement. The premium cost may be no higher than the cost of insurance
applicable to active employees. For retired employees, and their eligible dependents, the cost
of any such continued participation in any type of plan may be paid by the employer or the
retired employee. The District does not contribute to this cost, so any such cost must be paid
by the retired employee. The District has approximately 168 eligible full-time employees and
their dependents in the group health and life insurance plans. Since inception of the group
health and life insurance plan in 1997 no retired employee or their dependent has ever
requested to continue participation in the group health and life insurance plans. Due to the
District's normal retirement age being 65, with no early retirement option, and the fact that
persons eligible for employment with the District are also eligible to apply for and receive
Medicare coverage at a cost that is substantially less than the current cost to participate in the
District's group health and life insurance plans, it is not anticipated that any future retiree will
apply to participate in the plan as currently constituted. Therefore, no material OPEB liability
is recognized or recorded for the District.

(2)

Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Deficit Net Assets
The District's Little Sumter Service Area (LSSA) Utility Fund reported accumulated negative net
assets for the year ended September 30, 2009 and September 30, 2008 of $3,827,097 and
$4,074,528, as restated, respectively. Management believes that as the utility has migrated to the
conservation rate structure supported by the Southwest Florida Water Management District in FY
2008 and implemented a 3.94 percent inflation-based rate adjustment in October 2008 that the
operating revenue will cover expenses. In FY 2009, the utility did have a positive increase in net
assets of $247,431. Management also believes that the LSSA Water and Sewer Utility Fund's cash
flows will be sufficient to fund its operations and debt service requirements in the future. In FY
2009, the utility did meet its required bond debt service coverage as provided for in the Indenture of
Trust. A rate sufficiency study was completed in August 2009 that provides for no rate increase on
October 1, 2009, but annual increases of 2.5 percent on October 1 of each of the subsequent five
years.
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Deposits and Investments
As of September 30, 2009, the District had the following investments:
Fair Value at
September 30,

2009

Deposits and Investment Type
Cash on Hand
$
Demand Deposits, CFB
Local Government Investment Pool, SBA
Money Market Mutual Funds, U.S. Bank
0-2 Year Bond Fund, FMlvT
1-3 Year Bond Fund, FMlvT
Annuity Investment, settlement proceeds
Total Fair Value
$
Less: Fiduciary Fund Balances
Basic Financial Statement Balances
$
Portfolio Weighted Average Maturity (WAM)

3,475
4,502,316
8,302,799
19,092,344
11,009,561
8,037,970
11,813,159
62,761,624
40,467
62,721,157

Weighted
Average
Maturity
(Days)
n/a

1.0
31.5
45.0
310.3
576.7
2,569.3

Credit
Rating
n/a
n/a

AMm
AMm
AMf/S1

AAAlv2
AA-

630.2

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk exists when there is a possibility that changes in interest rates
could adversely affect an investruent's fair value. GASB 40 requires that interest rate risk be
disclosed using one of the five approved methods. The five methods are: segmented time
distribution, specific identification, Weighted Average Maturity (WAM), duration, and simulation
model. The District has used the WAM method in the above chart. In accordance with the District's
investment policy, the government manages its exposure to decline in fair values by limiting the
WAM of its investment portfolio to less than three years. The WAM on September 30, 2009 was
630.2 days (1.73 years).
Credit Risk. GASB 40 requires disclosure of credit quality ratings for investruents in debt securities
as well as investruents in external investruent pools, money market funds, and other pooled
investments of fixed income securities. Investments may be aggregated by ratings categories within
the disclosure. Ratings are set by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (Fitch,
Moody's, and Standard and Poor's (S&P». Fitch provides the ratings for FMIvT 0-3 Year High
Quality Bond Fund, while S&P provides the ratings for the U.S. Bank money market fund, FMIvT 02 Year High Quality Bond Fund and the SBA investruent pool.
Operating cash is maintained with Citizens First Bank, an authorized Public Depository, pursuant to
Chapter 280, Florida Statutes.
The District's investments consist offunds placed with four entities:
•

The State Board of Administration for participation in the Local Government Surplus Funds
Trust Fund investruent pool created by Section 218.415, Florida Statues. This investment
pool operates under investruent guidelines established by Section 215.47, Florida Statutes.
The District's investruents in the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund, a Securities
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Deposits and Investments (continned)
and Exchange Commission Rule 2a7-like external investment pool, are reported at fair
value which is amortized cost.
•

Trust balances related to restricted debt service accounts are maintained with U.S. Bank and
are invested in First American Government Obligation Fund Class Y, a money market
mutual fund.

•

The District also has investments consisting of funds placed with the Florida League of
Cities, Inc. for participation in the Florida Municipal Investment Trust (FMIvT) investment
pool. The pool is an authorized investment consistent with Section 218.415(16)(a), Florida
Statutes and the District's investment policy. The District owns shares in the 0-2 Year High
Quality Bond Fund and the 1-3 Year High Quality Bond Fund, pools operated by the
FMIvT. GASB 31 requires all governments to mark to market the unrealized gains and
losses incurred in its investments. As of September 30, 2009, the FMIvT had recognized
unrealized gains of a net amount of $481,866. These gains would only be realized if the
underlying shares in the FMIvT pools are sold.

•

On May 13, 2008, The Villages of Lake Sumter, Inc. (VLS) obtained an annuity contract
with MetLife, Inc. with an initial balance of $10,961,776.79, and provided it to the Village
Center Community Development District (VCCDD) as sole beneficiary of the annuity
contract proceeds. Provision of this annuity contract was required in the litigation settlement
agreement among VLS, VCCDD and residents of The Villages. This annuity provides
interest earnings at a rate of 5.49842876 percent with payments in various amounts due
annually on December 31,2013 through December 31, 2020, and totaling $17,124,200. As
of September 30, 2009, the annuity contract was valued at $11,813,159, including accrued
interest. MetLife is rated A+ by A.M. Best, AA- by Standard & Poor's, Aa3 by Moody's
and AA by Fitch. The Standard & Poor's rating is shown in the above schedule.

•

In total, the District recognized an investment gain of $1,705,565 during the fiscal year.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The District's investment policy requires the diversification of its
investment portfolio. Investments may be diversified by:
•

Limiting investments to avoid over-concentration in securities from a specific issuer or
business sector;

•

Limiting investments in securities with higher credit risks;

•

Investment in securities with varying maturities; and

•

Continuously investing a portion of the portfolio in readily available funds, such as the
Local Government Investment Pool, money market funds, or overnight repurchase
agreements to ensure the appropriate liquidity is maintained to meet ongoing obligations.

Custodial Credit Risk-Deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the District's deposits may not be returned to it. The District invests its operating cash solely
in Guaranteed Public Depositories that meet the requirements of Chapter 280, Florida Statutes. In
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Deposits and Investments (continued)
addition to protection of up to $250,000 for its deposits with a single bank being provided by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), the District's deposits are provided an extra level of
security afforded by using a public depository that meets the requirements of Chapter 280. This
includes the provision by the public depository of collateral based on the amount of public deposits
maintained at the institution and the ability of the State of Florida to levy other public depositories
for shortages in collateral in the event of the failure ofa public depository. The Citizens First Bank is
a Guaranteed Public Depository.

Custodial Credit Risk-Investments For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure
of the counterparty, the District will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in possession of an outside party. All investments are held in the name of the
District by a custodian or a Trustee for the District.
Investment Policy
The District is authorized to invest in those financial instruments as established by the Investment
Policy of the District. This policy allows investments authorized under Florida Statutes 218.415
amended to include Repurchase Agreements and prohibiting derivative-type investments. The
authorized investments consist of:
•

The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund or any intergovernmental investment pool
authorized pursuant to the Florida Inter-local Cooperation Act as provided in Section 163.01
Florida Statutes.

•

Securities and Exchange Commission registered money market mutual funds with the
highest credit quality rating from a nationally-recognized rating agency.

•

Interest-bearing time deposits or savings accounts in qualified public depositories as defined
in Section 280.02 Florida Statutes.

•

Direct obligations of the United States Treasury.

•

Federal agencies and instrumentalities.

•

Repurchase agreements with financial institutions approved as public depositors, provided
that the underlying collateral consist of obligations of the United States Government, its
agencies and instrumentalities. The repurchase agreement shall be collateralized equal to at
least 102 percent of the value of the District's investment.
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Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2009 was as follows:
Beginning
balance

Ending

Increases

Decreases

balance

(as restated)

Governmental activities:
Assets not being depreciated:
Construction in progress

$

378,826

(378,826)

Assets being depreciated:
Furniture & fixtures

3,492,000

534,840
383,952

4,026,840
383,952

(378,826)

(1,261,296)
(7,466)
3,142,029

(37,193)

9,703,741
1,099,619

(5,157)
(42,350)

59,053,054
83,988,909
9,815
3,944,657
157,799,794

(3,017,361)

(1,579,665)
(2,716,803)
(82)
(264,565)

5,157

(12,813,674)
(23,050,689)
(82)
(3,276,769)

(34,585,256)
121,707,947

(4,561,115)
(3,012,174)

5,157
(37,193)

(39,141,214)
118,658,581

124,580,147

(2,363,518)

(416,019)

121,800,610

Leasehold improvements

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Furniture & fixtures
Leasehold improvements
Governmental activities capital assets, net
Business activities:
Assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

(998,626)
$

2,872,200

(262,670)
(7,466)
648,656

$

9,703,716
335,823

25
800,989

58,794,053
83,785,190

259,001
203,719
9,815
275,393
1,548,941

Assets being depreciated:
Buildings and structures
Infrastructure

Leasehold improvements
Furniture & fixtures
Total

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and structures
Infrastructure
Leasehold improvements
Furniture & fixtures
Total accumulated depreciation
Business activities capital assets, net
$
Total Capital Assets Governmental
and Business Activities:
$

3,674,421
156,293,203

(1l,234,009)
(20,333,886)

Government activities depreciation expense of $270, 136 pertains to the Department of Public Safety,
The newly-established Fitness Enterprise Fund has one capital asset with a value of $9,733, net of
accumulated depreciation, as of September 30,2009.
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Capital Assets (continued)
Capital assets relating to business-type activities are further detailed as follows:

Recreation Amenities Division (RAD)
Ending

Beginning

balance
(As restated)

RAD
Assets not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in progress
Assets being depreciated:

$

Buildings and structures
Infrastructure

Furniture & fixtures
Total assets
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and structures
Infrastructure
Furniture & fixtures
Total accumulated depreciation
RAD capital assets, net

Decreases

balance

9,448,491
37,192

25
750,747

52,129,066
17,933,768
2,254,294
81,802,8\1

249,601
91,853
263,960
1,356,185

(9,605,668)
(5,902,621)
(1,934,861)

(1,329,642)
(672,110)
(163,941)

(10,935,311)
(6,574,731)
(2,098,802)

(17,443,150)

(2,165,693)

(19,608,844)

64,359,660

$

Increases

(809,508)

(37,193)

9,448,516
750,746

(37,193)

52,378,667
18,025,621
2,518,254
83,121,803

(37,193)

63,512,959

Village Center Service Area (VCSA) Water and Sewer Utility
Beginning
balance
(as restated)

VeSA Water and Sewer:
Assets not being depreciated
Land
Assets being depreciated:
Buildings and structures
Infrastructure
Furniture & fixtures

Decreases

Ending
balance

129,613

129,613

$

Total

Increases

1,539,423
30,851,179
1,144,730

9,400
93,179
11,433

(5,157)

1,548,823
30,944,358
1,15\,006

33,664,945

114,012

(5,157)

33,773,800

(905,182)
(9,218,531)
(928,349)

(91,272)
(938,948)
(62,939)

5,157

(996,454)
(10,157,479)
(986,13 I)

(11,052,062)

(1,093,159)

5,157

(12,140,064)

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and structures
Infrastructure
Furniture & fixtures
Total accumulated depreciation
VeSA Water and Sewer capital assets, net

$

22,612,883
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Capital Assets (continued)
Little Sumter Service Area (LSSA) Water and Sewer Utility
Beginning
balance
(as restated)

Increases

Decreases

Ending
balance

LSSA Water and Sewer:

Assets not being depreciated
$

Land

Construction in Progress

125,612
298,631

125,612
348,874

50,243

Assets being depreciated:

Buildings and structures

5,125,564
35,000,243
275,397
40,825,447

Infrastructure
Furniture & fixtures

Total
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and structures
Infrastructure
Furniture & fixtures
Total accumulated depreciation
LSSA Water and Sewer capital assets, net

(5)

$

5,125,564
35,018,930
275,397
40,894,377

18,687
68,930

(723,159)
(5,212,733)
(154,151)
(6,090,043)

(158,751)
(1,105,745)
(37,685)
(\,302,181)

(881,910)
(6,318,478)
(191,836)
(7,392,224)

34,735,404

(1,233,252)

33,502,152

Intangible Assets
Intangible asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2009 was as follows:
Beginning
balance

RAD:
Discounted value of amenity fees
Less accumulated amortization
Intangible assets, net
LSSA:
Discounted value of utilities charges
Less accumulated amortization

Intangible assets, net

Business-type activities:
Discounted value of amenity fees
Discounted value of utilities charges
Less accumulated amortization
Intangible assets, net

Increases

Decreases

Ending
balance

171,440,228
(35,847,355)

(4,271,263)

171,440,228
(40,118,618)

$

135,592,873

(4,271,263)

131,321,610

$

43,338,051
(5,413,285)

(1,083,451)

43,338,051
(6,496,736)

$

37,924,766

(1,083,451)

36,841,315

$

171,440,228
43,338,051
(41,260,640)

(5,354,714)

171,440,228
43,338,051
(46,615,354)

173,517,639

(5,354,714)

168,162,924

$

$
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Inter-fund Balances
One inter-fund payable and receivable exists between the two utility proprietary funds in the amount
of $14,040. A payment in this amount was erroneously collected into the Little Sumter Service Area
(LSSA), when it should have been collected into the Village Center Service Area (VCSA). The error
resulted in LSSA having a Due to VCSA of $14,040 and the VCSA recording a Due from the LSSA
in a like amount as of September 30, 2009. A second inter-fund payable existed between the RAD
Fund and the Fitness Enterprise Fund. The Fitness Enterprise Fund owed the RAD Fund $10,839 as
of September 30, 2009 to reimburse the RAD Fund for expenditures incurred.

(7)

Long-term Debt

Revenue Bonds Payable
Revenue bonds payable consisted of the following:
Recreation Amenities Division Bonds:

$60,175,000 Recreational Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998A due in annual principal
installments ranging from $2,150,000 to $3,640,000 through November 2022 in accordance with

the redemption schedule. Interest is due semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 of each year
until redemption or maturity. Interest rates range from 4.10% to 5.50%.

$

41,240,000

$14,220,000 Recreational Revenue Bonds, Series 1999A due in annual principal installments
ranging from $305,000 to $5,035,000 through November 2023 in accordance with the redemption

schedule. Interest is due semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 of each year until redemption or
maturity. Interest rates range from 3.9% to 5.0%.

13,150,000

$36,455,000 Recreational Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A due in annual principal installments
ranging from $770,000 to $7,310,000 through November 2025 in accordance with the redemption

schedule. Interest rates range from 3.25% to 5.20% and interest is due semi-annually on May 1
and November 1 of each year until redemption or maturity.

30,940,000

$57,250,000 Recreational Revenue Bonds, Series 2003A due in annual principal installments
ranging from $0 to $10,110,000 through November 2032 in accordance with the redemption

schedule. Interest rate is 5.0% and interest is due semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 of each
year until redemption or maturity.

57,250,000

$39,425,000 Recreational Revenue Bonds, Series 2004A due in annual principal installments
ranging from $0 to $12,110,000 through November 2036 in accordance with the redemption

schedule. Interest rates are 5.125% to 5.375% and interest is due semi-annually on May 1 and
November 1 of each year until redemption or maturity.

39,425,000

$5,755,000 Subordinate Recreational Revenue Bonds, Series 1998B due in annual principal
installments ranging from $310,000 to $470,000 through January 2017 in accordance with the

redemption schedule. Interest at 8.25% is due semi-annually on January 1 and July I of each year
until redemption or maturity.
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Long-term Debt (continned)

Revenue Bonds Payable (continued)
$5,340,000 Subordinate Recreational Revenue Bonds, Series 1998C due in annual principal
installments ranging from $175,000 to $1,005,000 through January 2019 in accordance with the
redemption schedule. Interest at 7.375% is due semi-annually on January 1 and July 1 cfeach year
until redemption or maturity.

4,075,000

$7,665,000 Subordinate Recreational Revenue Bonds, Series 1999B due in annual principal
installments ranging from $740,000 to $1,065,000 through January 2013 in accordance with the
redemption schedule. Interest at 6.25% is due semi-annually on January 1 and July 1 of each year
until redemption or maturity.

3,380,000

$7,005,000 Subordinate Recreational Revenue Bonds, Series 2003B due in annual principal
installments ranging from $0 to $2,420,000 through January 2018 in accordance with the
redemption schedule. Interest at 6.35% is due semi-annually on January 1 and July 1 of each year
until redemption or maturity.

7,005,000

$11,160,000 Subordinate Recreational Revenue Bonds, Series 2004B due in annual principal
installments ranging from $1,170,000 to $2,475,000 through January 2015 in accordance with the
redemption schedule. Interest at 5.875% is due semi-annually on January I and July I of each year
until redemption or maturity.

10,040,000

veSA Utility Revenue Bonds
$25,465,000 Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1998A due in annual principal installments
ranging from $810,000 to $1,720,000 through October 2023 in accordance with the redemption
schedule. Interest is due semi-annually on April 1 and October I of each year until redemption or
maturity. Interest rates range from 3.60% to 5.25%.

18,675,000

$5,690,000 Subordinate Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 1998B due in annual principal installments
ranging from $180,000 to $385,000 through October 2023 in accordance with the redemption
schedule. Interest rates range from 3.65% to 5.25%. Interest is due semi-annually on April I and
October I of each year until redemption or maturity.

4,155,000

LSSA Utility Revenue Bonds
$86,400,000 Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 due in annual principal installments ranging from
$1,475,000 to $5,230,000 through October 2036 in accordance with the redemption schedule.
Interest is due semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 of each year until redemption or maturity.
Interest rates range from 5.00% to 5.25%.

81,460,000

Total revenue bonds payable
Plus bond premium
Less bond discount
Less current installment of revenue bonds payable
Revenue bonds payable less current installments
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313,945,000
894,460
(867,721)
(8,185,000)
305,786,739
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Long-term Debt (continned)

Revenue Bonds Payable (continued)
The Recreational Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A, 1998B, 1998C, 1999A, 1999B, 2001A, 2003A,
2003B, 2004A, and 2004B are secured by a lien and pledge of amenity fees and other revenues under
the indentures which are derived by the District from the users of the recreational facilities. These
bonds and notes are additionally secured by amounts on deposit in the funds and accounts created
pursuant to the indentures. The Recreational Revenue Bonds, Series 1998B, 1998C, 1999B, 2003B
and 2004B are secured by a lien and pledge of amenity fees and other revenues which is junior and
subordinate to the lien and pledge of revenues on the Recreational Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A,
1999A, 2001A, 2003A and 2004A.
The Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A and 1998B are secured by a lien and pledge of the
revenues under the indenture which are derived by the District from the fees and charges for water
and wastewater services in the Village Center Service Area (VCSA). The Utility Revenue Bonds,
Series 1998B are secured by a lien and pledge of revenues which is junior and subordinate to the lien
and pledge of revenues on the Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 1998A.
The Utility Revenue Bond, Series 2003 is secured by a lien and pledge of the revenues under the
indenture which is derived by the District from the fees and charges for water and wastewater
services in the Little Sumter Service Area.
The annual requirements to amortize the principal and interest of all revenue bonds payable as of
September 30, 2009 are as follows:
Principal

Interest

Total

Fiscal year ending September 30:
2010 $
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015-2019
2020-2024
2024-2029
2030-2034
2035-2037

8,185,000
8,610,000
9,065,000
9,560,000
10,090,000
54,070,000
51,900,000
49,970,000
63,010,000
49,485,000

16,059,437
15,626,988
15,162,126
14,664,197
14,135,641
61,836,113
48,136,056
35,136,526
20,450,603
3,875,256

24,244,437
24,236,988
24,227,126
24,224,197
24,225,641
115,906,113
100,036,056
85,106,526
83,460,603
53,360,256

$

313,945,000

245,082,944

559,027,944

Total

Due to Developer - Recreational Capital Assets
Subordinate debt service reserve requirements were funded by the recreational revenue bond
proceeds. Therefore, this amount was not available for payment to the developer for the purchase of
recreation and security facilities. This amount becomes available for payment to the developer when
the reserve requirement is reduced as principal payments are made on the debt. Amounts due to the
developer as of September 30,2009 were $1,381,984.
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Long-term Debt (continned)

Capital Leases
The District is obligated under capital leases covering machinery and equipment that expire at
various dates through 2014. As of September 30, 2009, the gross amount of machinery and
equipment recorded under capital leases was $690,846 with accumulated depreciation of $306,446.
Future minimum lease payments (with initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year) and
future minimum capital lease payments as of September 30, 2009 are:

Fiscal year ending September 30:
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
Total minimum lease payments
Less interest
Net present value

Capital
Leases
Governmental
Funds

Capital
Leases
Proprietary
Funds

90,368
71,862
71,862
36,768
36,768
307,628
31,206
276,422

1,429

$

$
$

Total
Capital
Leases
91,797
71,862
71,862
36,768
36,768
309,057
31,206
277,851

1,429
1,429

Loans Payable
District loans payable related to the District's governmental activities consisted of the following:
Loan payable to bank, secured by fire and safety equipment, principal and interest
payments due monthly, interest fixed at 4.30%, maturing February 28, 2010.

$

Loan payable to bank, secured by fire and safety equipment, principal and interest
payments due monthly, interest fixed at 4.30% for five years and then adjusted
to 70% oflenders prime rate, maturing February 28, 2015.
Total loans payable
Less current installments ofloan payable
Long-term portion of loans payable
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$

484,686
87,062
397,624
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Long-term Debt (continued)
The annual requirements to amortize the loans payable are shown below:
Principal
Fiscal year ending September 30:
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
Total

87,062
83,101
86,745
90,550
94,521
42,626
484,605

$

$

Total

Iuterest

106,104
98,570
98,570
98,570
98,570
43,107
543,491

19,042
15,469
11,825
8,020
4,049
481
58,886

Changes in Long-term Debt:
Beginning
balance

Govermental activities:
Loans payable
Capital leases
Governmental activities
long-tenn debt

$

Due to developer - RAD
Capital leases
Total business-type activities

Total debt

$

Reductions

Ending
balance

Due within
ODe year

129,620
100,594

484,605
276,421

87,062
89,455

230,214

761,026

176,517

214,845,000
23,820,000
82,900,000

5,190,000
990,000
1,440,000

209,655,000
22,830,000
81,460,000

5,665,000
1,045,000
1,475,000

39,429
321,604,429

12,690
7,632,690

26,739
313,971,739

26,739
8,211,739

1,520,250
4,859

138,266
3,430

1,381,984
1,429

1,429

323,129,537

7,774,386

315,355,152

8,213,168

8,004,599

316,116,178

8,389,685

614,225
377,015

$ _ _"""9",,91;,;,2,,,4,,=0

Business-type activities;
Bonds payable
RAD
$
VCSA Water and Sewer
LSSA Water and Sewer
Plus bond discount and deferred
amounts
Total bonds payable

long-term liabilities

Additions

=====~

324,120,777
$ _.,,;;;;,;o,;;=~

Pledged Revenues:
The District has pledged certain amenities fee revenue to pay the principal and interest on
Recreational Revenue and Utility Revenue Bonds issued to pay for the purchase of recreational and
water and sewer utility facilities from the Developer. These Recreational and Utility Revenue Bonds
were outstanding on September 30, 2009 as shown below. The table reports the revenues pledged for
each debt issue, the amounts of revenue received in the current year, the current year principal and
interest paid on the debt, the approximate percentage of each revenue which is pledged to meet the
debt obligation, and the date through which the revenue is pledged under the debt agreement and the
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Long-term Debt (continued)
total pledged future revenues for each debt, which is the amount of the remaining principal and
interest on the bonds as of September 30, 2009.

Revenue

Descri)!tion of Debt

Recreational Revenue
Bonds, Series 1998A, 1999A,
2001A, 2003A, 2004A, 1998B,
1998C, 1999B, 20038 and 20048
Utility Revenue Bonds, Series
1998A and 1998B

Water and Sewer Revenue,

Utility Revenue Bonds,

Water and Sewer Revenue,
LSSA Fund

Series 2003

(8)

Pledged Revenue
Amenities Fee Revenue
and Other Income ofRAD
Fund

$

Received
45,137,107 $

Principal
and Interest
Paid
16,344,514

Estimated
Outstanding
Percent
Principal and
Pledged
Interest
36.21%
$ 374,729,757

5,982,339

2,152,925

35.99%

9,262,669

5,424,925

58.57%

32,522,875

Ploogoo

2023

VCSAFund
151,775,312

2036

Related Parties
The District entered into inter-local agreements to provide Village Community Development District
No. I (District No. I), Village Community Development District No.2 (District No.2), Village
Community Development District No.3 (District No.3), Village Community Development District
No.4 (District No.4), Sumter Landing Community Development District (Sumter Landing), and
Village Community Development District No.5 (District No.5), Village Community Development
District No.6 (District No.6), Village Community Development District No.7 ( District No.7),
Village Community Development District No.8 ( District No.8), Village Community Development
District No.9 ( District No.9), and Village Community Development District No. 10 (District No.
10) certain management, finance, and administrative services for fees of $173,622, $173,684,
$178,972, $184,178, $4,614,934, $200,825, $209,562, $202,157, $123,120, $7,077 and $6,578,
respectively, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009. Upon action by their respective Boards of
Supervisors, District No.1 through District No. 10 and Sumter Landing District may request
additional services as they deem necessary for the efficient and effective management of their
respective districts. Such additional services are billed to the benefiting district at the District's cost.
The District has purchased from the Developer classified advertising, building rents, management
services, and repair services for $574,845. In addition, the District reimbursed the Developer
$123,243 for items and services purchased or paid for by the Developer on behalf of the District.
The District purchased water, waste water, and irrigation water, paying rates approved by the Public
Service Commission, from companies affiliated with the Developer for $24,071. The District paid
bank fees and loan interest to a bank affiliated with the Developer in the amount of $83,360 and
received interest income from the same bank of $2,182. The District received for no charge from the
Developer information system support, including software, hardware and computer programming
and internal mail room operations.
The District purchased the Little Sumter Service Area (LSSA) Utility from a company affiliated with
the Developer and per the terms of the sale, has paid CIAC receipts to the seller. In February 2005,
$3,145,819 was paid, in March 2006, $713,381 was paid, in May 2007, $323,695 was paid and in
March 2008, $1,134,409 was paid. As of September 30, 2009 the remaining balance of potential
additional CIAC proceeds to the SeHer is $1,539,226 of which $1,075,579 has been col\ected and not
yet paid.
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Related Parties (continued)
The District and the Developer entered into a Utility Option agreement dated September 19, 2008
which replaced two previous agreements dated November 1, 2003 and February 27, 2004, which
were expiring. In the new agreement, the District grants the Developer the option to purchase up to
20,000 gallons per day of additional wastewater treatment capacity at Little Sumter Wastewater
Treatment Plant in return for a one-time option fee of $6,820, which represents ten percent (10%) of
the total Contribution-in-Aid of Construction (CIAC) if the additional reserved capacity is utilized in
the future. The payment of $6,820, received in September 2008, would be credited against the total
CIAC due if the option is exercised. The agreement expires five years from the effective date.
Substantially all capital costs for infrastructure were acquired from the Developer or paid on
contracts that were assigned to the District by the Developer using bond proceeds in either the
current or previous years.
The District is governed by a five-member Board of Supervisors. As of September 30, 2009, all
members of the Board of Supervisors are employees of or affiliated with the Developer.

(9) Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases
The District has entered into five leases with the Developer for three office buildings and two public
safety facilities. The District has also entered into operating leases for office equipment. Each of the
building leases has a CPI-based increase scheduled in their renewal month (October for four leases
and November for the fifth lease) that is not included in the amounts below. In addition, the District
has entered into various operating leases for copiers and other equipment items as shown below.
The future minimum leases payments for these leases are as follows:
Building
Leases
Year Ending September 30:
2010
$
2011
2012
2013
2014
Total
$

593,704
593,704
593,704
593,704
559,002
2,933,816

Equipment
Leases
9,733
9,733
4,054
2,662
222
26,404

Total
603,437
603,437
597,758
596,366
559,224
2,960,220

(10) Risk Management
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage and destruction of
assets, errors and omissions, and natural disasters. The District generally carries insurance for these
risks, however, the District retains risk for certain property coverage and for losses in excess of
coverage limits. There have been no claims in excess of coverage limits for the past two years.
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(11) Litigation Settlement Agreement and Amenity Authority Committee (AAC)
As part of the litigation settlement agreement between the District, The Villages of Lake Sumter, and
Villages residents, an initial payment of $11 ,886, 151 in cash was received in April 2008. In addition,
a total of $28,021,000 in further payments is due each December for the next thirteen years. The
Villages of Lake Sumter provided the District an annuity contract which is held as an investroent
valued at $11,813,159 to cover the last eight years of this settlement requirement. The second
through fifth annual payments are shown as a receivable with a net present value of $8,478,364 as of
September 30, 2009.
As part of the settlement agreement a requirement was established to form an Amenity Authority
Committee (AAC) with duties, authority and limitations to be defined in an Inter-local Agreement
among the Village Center Community Development District, the Town of Lady Lake, and Village
Community Development District Nos. 1,2,3 and 4. This Inter-local Agreement dated April 18,
2008 establishes the membership of the AAC including elected representatives from each of the six
jurisdictions named above. It establishes the powers and limitations of the AAC in advising and
providing direction to the Board of Supervisors of the Village Center Community Development
District concerning the receipt and expenditure of amenities fees, settlement proceeds and related
funds.
(12) Establishment ofInvestment Advisory Committee (lAC)
In December 2007, the Boards of Supervisors of the Village Center Community Development
District, Sumter Landing Community Development District and Village Community Development
District Nos. 1-8 formed an Investment Advisory Committee, comprised of one member for each
District, to provide staff guidance on the Districts' investroent strategy and to report back to their
respective boards the status of the Districts investroents. In January 2009, an eleventh member was
added to the committee, with the consent of all ten Districts, to represent the Amenity Authority
Committee of the Village Center Community Development District.
(13) Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Audit of Recreation Bonds

On January 7, 2008, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) notified the Village Center Community
Development District (VCCDD) of its intent to audit the $57,250,000 Village Center Community
Development District Recreational Revenue Bonds, Series 2003A, and the $7,005,000 Village
Center Community Development District Recreational Revenue Bonds, Series 2003B. The IRS
routinely examines municipal debt issues to determine compliance with Federal tax requirements. In
May 2008, the District engaged the services of Mr. Perry Israel, as tax counsel, to represent the
District before the IRS. On June 5, 2008, the District provided a Notice of Material Event-IRS
Examination, to the bondholders and potential bondholders of CUSIP 92706NCQ4 and 92706NCSO.
The Village Center Community Development District (the "Issuer") received on January 23, 2009
three (3) "Notice of Proposed Issues" (collectively, the "Notices") relating to the Internal Revenue
Services' (the "IRS") examination of the above referenced bond issue. The conclusions stated in the
Notices are as follows: (I) the Issuer does not qualify as a political subdivision or as "an on behalf of
issuer" of tax-exempt bonds pursuant to Section 1.103-I(b) of the Internal Revenue Code
regulations; (2) the opinions of value do not support the price paid by the Issuer to the developer for
the Series 2003 Facilities and the payment of the sales price for the facilities to the developer by the
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(13) Internal Revenne Service (IRS) Andit of Recreation Bonds (continned)
Issuer is not a governmental use oftbe proceeds of the Bonds; and (3) tbe Bonds are private activity
bonds the interest on which is not excludable under IRS Section 103.
In July 2009, tbe IRS expanded the scope of the audit to include all recreational and utility revenue

bonds issued by the Village Center Community Development District. A further Notice of Material
Events-IRS Examination was provided to the secondary market for holders of these additional series
of bonds on July 22, 2009.
The Issuer disagrees with the conclusions set forth in the IRS Notices and intends to work with the
IRS to protect the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds. The Issuer cannot predict
the outcome of the discussions and negotiations with the IRS.
(14) Restatement of Beginning Net Assets
(a) The beginning net assets at tbe government-wide level were restated to more accurately reflect
the value of capital assets. The changes in capital assets related to the recording of donated land and
improvements and reclassification of capital assets between the Village Center Service Area (VCSA)
and the Recreation Amenities Division proprietary funds. In addition, the depreciation calculation
used for assets acquired by the Little Sumter Service Area (LSSA) Water and Sewer Fund was
corrected, resulting in an adjustment to decrease accumulated depreciation. The change to capital
assets is a net increase in tbe proprietary funds of $8,643,614, resulting in a like increase in net
assets.
(b) The beginning net assets at the government-wide level were restated to more accurately reflect
tbe amount of interest payable at the end of the prior fiscal year. The change to interest payable is a
reduction of$114,138, resulting in a like increase in net assets.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Board of Supervisors
Village Center Community Development District
The Villages, Florida
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities and each
major fund of Village Center Community Development District (the District), as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated February 10,2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District's internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District's internal control over financial reporting.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.
Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identifY all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did
not identifY any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above. However, we identified a deficiency in internal control over fmancial
reporting that we consider to be a significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. The following comment describes the significant deficiency:

Certified Public Accountants
P.O. Box 23999·222 N.E. 1st Street· Gainesville, Florida 32602. (352) 378-2461 • FAX (352) 378-2505
Laurel Ridge Professional Center. 2347 S.E. 17th Street. Ocala, Florida 34471 • (352) 732-3872 • FAX (352) 732-0542
443 East College Avenue. Tallahassee, Florida 32301 • (850) 224-7144 • FAX (850) 224-1762
2201 Cantu Court, Suite #100· Sarasota, Florida 34232. (941) 379-2800. FAX (941) 379-2899
MEMBERS OF AMERICAN AND FLORIDA INSTITUTES OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
MEMBER OF AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS PRIVATE COMPANIES AND S.E.C. PRACTIce SECTIONS
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Board of Supervisors
Village Center Community Development District
The Villages, Florida

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
(Concluded)
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting (Concluded)
•

2009-1 Prior Period Adjustment
Our prior year management letter comment stated that the initial purchase ofthe infrastructure assets
obtained from the developer was shown as one large amount in the capital asset records although the
actual makeup of the purchase consisted of land, roads, and structures. We recommended that
management determine the actual makeup of the assets by type and allocate accordingly the costs
associated with the asset type.
During the year, the District completed an in depth review and valuation of their capital asset
acquisitions. During this process, it was determined that certain capital assets were not properly
recorded or removed as needed. To correct the capital asset subsidiary records and adjust the
financial records, a prior period adjustment was made to restate the capital and net assets of the
District.
Additionally, a prior period adjustment was made to more accurately state interest payable at the end
of the prior fiscal year.
We recommend that management continue developing an internal control process that identifies and
records all capital asset transactions with specific attention to contributions of capital assets to or from
the District.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's basic financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of fmancial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instance of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, this report is a public record and its distribution is not limited.
Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America require us to indicate that this
report is intended solely for the information and use of management and the Florida Auditor General, and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

February 10,2010
Ocala, Florida
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MANAGEMENT LETTER
Board of Supervisors
Village Center Community Development District
The Villages, Florida
We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the govermnental activities, business-type
activities, and each major fund of Village Center Community Development District (the District), as of and
for the fiscal year ended September 30,2009, and have issued our report thereon dated February 10,2010.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. We have issued our independent auditors' report
on internal control over financial reporting and compliance and other matters. Disclosures in those reports,
which are dated February 10,2010, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.
Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General,
which governs the conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in the State of Florida. This
letter includes the following iuformation, which is not included in the aforementioned auditors' report:
Section 10.554(1 )(i) I., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective
action has been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding annual financial
audit report. Corrective actions have been taken to address fmdings and recommendations made in the
preceding annual financial audit report (see attached management letter comments).
Section 10.554(1 )(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires our audit to include a review of provision of
Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding investment ofpubJic funds. In connection with our audit we
determined that the District complied with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes.
Sections 10.554(l)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management letter
any recommendations to improve the District's financial management (see attached management letter
comments).
Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address violations of provisions of
contracts or grant agreements, or abuse that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than
material but more than inconsequential. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings.
Section 1O.554(1)(i)5., Rules of the Auditor General, provides that the auditor may, based on profeSSional
judgment, report the following matters that have an inconsequential effect on financial statements,
considering both quantitative and qualitative factors: (1) violations of provisions of contracts or grant
agreements, fraud, illegal acts, or abuse; and (2) control deficiencies that are not significant deficiencies.
In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings.
Certified Public Accountants
P.O. Box 23999·222 N.E. 1st Street. Gainesville, Florida 32602. (3521378-2461 • FAX (3521378-2505
Laurel Ridge Professional Center. 2347 S.E. 17th Street· Ocala, Florida 34471 • (352) 732-3872 • FAX (352) 732-0542
443 East College Avenue. Tallahassee, Florida 32301 • (850) 224-7144 • FAX (850) 224-1762
2201 Cantu Court, Suite #100. Sarasota, Florida 34232. (941) 379-2800· FAX (941) 379-2899
MEMBERS OF AMERICAN AND FLORIDA INSTITUTES OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
MEMBER OF AMERICAN lNsmUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS PRIVATE COMPANIES AND S.E.C. PRACTICE SEcnONS
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Section 10.554(1 )(i)6., Rules of the Auditor General, also requires that the name or official title and legal
authority for the primary govermnent be disclosed in the management letter, uniess disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements. See Note I of the September 30, 2009, Village Center Community Development
District's basic fmancial statements for this information.
Section 1O.554(1)(i)7.(a)., Rules of the Auditor General, requires a statement be included as to whether or
not the local govermnent entity has met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1),
Florida Statutes, and identification of the specific conditions(s) met. In connection with our audit we
determined that the District did not meet any conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes.
Section 10.554(1)(i)7.(b)., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determined whether the annual
financial report for the District for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009, filed with the Department of
Financial Services pursuant to Section 218.32(I)(a), Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the annual
fmancial audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009. In connection with our audit, we
determined that these two reports agree.
Pursuant Sections 1O.554(1)(i)7.(c) and 10.556(7)., Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial
condition assessment procedures. It is management's responsibility to monitor the District's financial
condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by
management and the review of financial information provided by same.
Pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, this management letter is a public record and its distribution is not
limited. Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America require us to indicate that
this letter is intended solely for the information and use of management and the Florida Auditor General,
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

February 10,2010
Ocala, Florida
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MANAGEMENT LETTER COMMENTS
Board of Supervisors
Village Center Community Development District
The Villages, Florida
Status of Prior Year Comments and Recommendations
The Village Center Community Development District (the District) has addressed all prior year comments
and recommendations.
Current Year Recommendations
Cash Handling - Off-site Locations
Cash is collected at several remote collections sites for golf play, recreation fees, and other similar
functions. Our review of this area indicates that internal controls over cash handling at these sites could
be improved. Specific areas to be addressed would include:
•
•
•
•
•

Improving the audit trail of cash collected at starter shacks for guest play.
Creation of a standardized log for all starter shack cash bags received at recreation centers.
Preparation of deposit slips by all starter shacks for cash collected to create a record of the cash
turned over to the recreation center.
Improving physical security over cash kept daily and over night at recreation centers by installing
safes on site. Currently cash is kept in desk drawers and filing cabinets.
Improving the timeliness of deposits so that cash does not stay on site at recreation centers more than
one day and night, with special attention to special event collections that are currently kept on site
until the day of the event.

We recommend that the District perform an in-house review of cash handling procedures at all remote
collections sites and implement controls to address the above items and any other improvements that may
be needed.
Pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, this management letter comment is a public record and its
distribution is not limited. Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America require
us to indicate that this letter is intended solely for the information and use of management and the Florida
Auditor General, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.
We would like to take this opportunity to express our appreciation for the courtesies that have been
extended to our staff. If you have any questions or comments about the contents of this letter, please do
not hesitate to contact us.

February 10,2010
Ocala, Florida
Certified Public Accountants
P.O. Box 23999 .222 N.E. 1st Street. Gainesville, Florida 32602 • (352) 378·2461 • FAX (352) 378·2505
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VILLAGE CENTER COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
3201 Wedgewood Lane, The Villages, FL 32162 Telephone: (352) 753-0421 Fax: (352) 751-3901

February 10, 2010

Board of Supervisors
Village Center Community Development District
The Villages, Florida 32162
RE: Management Response Letter
Dear Supervisors:
Attached is the completed audit for fiscal year 2008-2009 for Village Center Community
Development District. We are proud to report that this audit has an unqualified opinion.
There is one internal control deficiency reported, 2009-1, related to the restatement of capital
asset values. In prior years our auditors have been concerned about the accuracy and discreet
identification of capital assets as recorded on District accounting records. As a result, in the past
eighteen months, staff has been working on a comprehensive review of the capital assets recorded
in District records. This review resulted in the identification of errors made in past years, and
their correction as a prior period adjustment. Since this issue has now been corrected in a manner
acceptable to the auditors, the management comment related to capital assets has been removed
from the current year report, and the auditors recognize the corrected procedures have been
implemented and encourage their continued use in the future.
There are no material weaknesses or compliance issues identified and reported. All prior year
management letter comments have now been corrected to the satisfaction ofthe auditors and only
one new comment has been identified as follows:
Current Year Recommendations
Cash Handling - Off-site Locations
Cash is collected at several remote collection sites for golf play, recreation fees, and other similar
functions. Our review of this area indicates that internal controls over cash handling at these sites
could be improved.
•
•
•

Improving the audit trail of cash collected at starter shacks for gnest play.
Creation of a standardized log for all starter shack cash bags received at recreation
centers.
Preparation of deposit slips by all starter shacks for cash collected to create a record of
the cash turned over to the recreation center.
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•
•

Improving physical security over cash kept daily and over night at recreation centers by
installing safes on site. Currently cash is kept in desk drawers and filing cabinets.
Improving the timeliness of deposits so that cash does not stay on site at recreation
centers more than one day and night, with special attention to special event collections
that are currently kept on site until the day of the event.

We recommend that the District perform an in-house review of cash handling procedures at all
remote collections sites and implement controls to address the above items and any other
improvements that may be needed.
Management Response: Concur

Within the past year the District has prepared and implemented internal control policies
governing both petty cash funds and change funds. This has included three complete reviews by
Finance Department staff in the last twelve months performing unaunounced cash counts at each
petty cash and change fund site.
The Recreation Department and its golf course service contractor, Golf Management Services,
Inc., takes their cash handling responsibilities seriously. A staff member of the department is now
performing spot checks to verify compliance with established policies and the contract documents
are being strengthened to delineate the internal control duties of staff and the contractor. Steps are
underway to introduce Point-of-Sale terminals at all golf shacks in the next few months, with
concurrent strengthening of cash handling practices at these sites.
The District will review and upgrade physical security measures to ensure safe overnight storage
of funds and daily receipts. Timely deposit of all collections will be monitored to ensure
compliance with District and department policies.
Your District staff has worked hard to assure you as supervisors that the management of the
District's funds is conducted professionally, consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles and governing Florida Statutes.
We believe that Village Center Community Development District continues to set an example for
the appropriate management of Community Development Districts as conceived in Chapter 190,
Florida Statutes. We would particularly like to commend the staff of the Villages District Finance
Department for their diligent efforts in recording and maintaining the financial records of the
District.
We would be happy to entertain any questions members of the Board of Supervisors may have on
the audit report or the management of District resources.
Sincerely,

David R. Miles, CGFO
Finance Director
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